
Resources and Transformation Directorate
Legal and Democratic Services  Cumbria House 107-117 Botchergate  

Carlisle  Cumbria  CA1 1RD  
Tel 01228 606060  Email democratic.services@cumbria.gov.uk

1

23 February 2017

To:  The Chair and Members of the Standards 
Committee

Agenda
STANDARDS COMMITTEE

A meeting of the Standards Committee will be held as follows: 

Date: Friday 3 March 2017
Time: 2.00 pm
Place: Committee Room 4, County Hall, Kendal

Dawn Roberts
Corporate Director – Resources and Transformation

Enquiries and requests for supporting papers to:  Holly English
Direct Line: 0797 6062123
Email: shamim.lindsay@cumbria.gov.uk

This agenda is available on request in alternative formats

Serving the People of Cumbria



2

MEMBERSHIP

County Councillors Independent Members

Mr F Cassidy
Mr L Fisher
Mr J Holliday
Mrs G Troughton
Mrs J Willis

Mr K Fryer (Chair)
Mr S Sim (Vice-Chair)

Substitutes

Mr R Bingham
Mr G Cooke
Mr T Knowles
Mr T Markley

ACCESS TO INFORMATION

Agenda and Reports

Copies of the agenda and Part I reports are available for members of the public to inspect 
prior to the meeting.  Copies will also be available at the meeting.

The agenda and Part I reports are also available on the County Council’s website – 
http://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=124&Year=0 

Background Papers

Requests for the background papers to the Part I reports, excluding those papers that 
contain exempt information, can be made to the Legal and Democratic Services Unit at the 
address overleaf between the hours of 9.00 am and 4.30 pm, Monday to Friday.

http://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=124&Year=0


3

A G E N D A

PART 1: ITEMS LIKELY TO BE CONSIDERED IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS 
AND PUBLIC

1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

To receive any apologies for absence.
  

2  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members are invited to disclose any disclosable pecuniary interest they have in any item 
on the agenda which comprises

1 Details of any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for 
profit or gain. 

2 Details of any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from 
the authority) made or provided within the relevant period in respect of any 
expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards your 
election expenses.  (This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade 
union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992. 

3 Details of any contract which is made between you (or a body in which you have 
a beneficial interest) and the authority 

(a) Under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 
executed; and 

(b) Which has not been fully discharged. 

4 Details of any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the authority.  

5 Details of any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of 
the authority for a month or longer.  

6 Details of any tenancy where (to your knowledge) 

(a) The landlord is the authority; and

(b) The tenant is a body in which you have a beneficial 
interest.

7 Details of any beneficial interest in securities of a body where

(a) That body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the 
area of the authority; and



4

(b) Either – 

(i) The total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or

(ii) If that share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the relevant 
person has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class.

In addition, you must also disclose other non-pecuniary interests set out in the Code of 
Conduct where these have not already been registered.

Note

A “disclosable pecuniary interest” is an interest of a councillor or their partner 
(which means spouse or civil partner, a person with whom they are living as 
husband or wife, or a person with whom they are living as if they are civil 
partners). 
  

3  MINUTES

To agree as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 20 
July 2016 (copy enclosed)
  (Pages 5 - 6)

4  REVIEW OF THE PROTOCOL FOR INVESTIGATION OF COMPLAINTS 
REGARDING BREACHES OF THE MEMBERS CODE OF CONDUCT

To consider a report by the Monitoring Officer and Senior Manager – Legal and 
Democratic Services (copy enclosed).  (Pages 7 - 20)

5  COMPLAINTS

To receive a verbal update from the Acting Monitoring Officer.
  

6  DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS

The dates of future meetings are as follows:

Friday 28 April 2017, 10:00am, at Cumbria House, Carlisle.
Friday 7 July 2017, 10:00am, at County Offices, Kendal.
Tuesday 5 September 2017, 10:00am at Cumbria House, Carlisle.
  



STANDARDS COMMITTEE

Minutes of a special Meeting of the Standards Committee held on Wednesday, 20 
July 2016 at 2.00 pm at The Courts, Carlisle

PRESENT:

County Councillors

Mr F Cassidy
Mr JS Holliday
Mr AJ Markley

Independent Members

Mr K Fryer (Chair)
Mr S Sim (Vice-Chair)

Also in Attendance:-

Ms I Puzio - Senior Manager - Legal and Democratic Services and 
Deputy Monitoring Officer 

1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Mr L Fisher, Ms G Troughton, Mrs J 
Willis, together with Mr AR Worsley, and Mr J Rocke.

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no discloseable pecuniary interests declared at the meeting.

3 REQUEST FOR A DISPENSATION

Consideration was given to a report by the Corporate Director – Resources and 
Transformation which dealt with a request for a dispensation submitted by 
Councillor Southward, the member for Egremont.  His written request for a 
dispensation was appended to the report.

Cllr Southward had requested a dispensation to enable him to participate in 
discussions and decisions regarding the application by NuGen for a Development 
Consent Order for the proposed Moorside Power Station.  The application related to 
a nationally significant infrastructure project under the Planning Act 2008, for which 
the Council was a consultee, with the opportunity to make submissions at various 
stages to the Planning Inspectorate.  Cllr Southward owned land and property 500 
metres from the site proposed for the development and was a member of the 
Cabinet that would consider certain of the responses. 

In considering his request for a dispensation Cllr Southward joined the meeting to 
put forward his case.  Cllr Southward presented his application.  In addition to 
information previously provided Cllr Southward indicated that there was some 
suggestion from NuGen that they may look to purchase properties in the immediate 
vicinity of the development.  The Committee also considered the legal position with 

5

Agenda Item 3



regard to Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI) and the circumstances in which the 
Localism Act allowed a Council to permit them to participate in Council business 
where they would otherwise be unable to.  In reaching it’s decision the Committee 
applied the criteria for determining requests which it had agreed at its meeting on 11 
April 2014.  

The Committee considered that the request for a dispensation was an appropriate 
request, that public confidence in the conduct of the Council’s business was best 
served by the participation of Cllr Southward in this matter given the particular 
knowledge and experience he had in nuclear matters and consequently any 
potential personal benefit was outweighed by the public benefit of his active 
involvement in this particular Council business.  The Committee therefore concluded 
that in all the circumstances granting a dispensation was in the interests of persons 
living in the Council area.

RESOLVED that the request for a dispensation from Cllr. Southward (Appendix 1) 
to allow him to participate and vote at all meetings of the Council on all 
matters relating to the NuGen development at Moorside be agreed, 
such dispensation lasting until the expiry of Cllr Southward’s term of 
office in May 2017.

The meeting ended at 2.45 pm

6



STANDARDS COMMITTEE

Meeting date: 3 March 2017

From: Monitoring Officer and Senior Manager – Legal 
and Democratic Services

REVIEW OF THE PROTOCOL FOR INVESTIGATION OF 
COMPLAINTS REGARDING BREACHES OF THE MEMBER 
CODE OF CONDUCT

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1 This report sets out the recommended changes to the Protocol for 
Investigation of Complaints regarding breaches of the Member Code of 
Conduct, following a review of that protocol by the Monitoring Officer.

2.0 STRATEGIC PLANNING AND EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

2.1 The Council Plan 2014-2017 sets out the aim for the Council to be an 
effective and efficient organisation that delivers the best possible 
services for the people of Cumbria.  

2.2 The recommended changes will improve the efficiency and 
effectiveness of the protocol for Investigation of Complaints regarding 
breaches of the Member Code of Conduct. 

3.0 RECOMMENDATION

3.1 Standards Committee is recommended to agree the protocol for 
Investigation of Complaints regarding breaches of the Member Code of 
Conduct, as set out in Appendix A, is approved. 

4.0 BACKGROUND

4.1 The terms of reference for the Standards Committee were changed in 2012, 
as part of the legislative changes to the enforcement of standards of member 
conduct.  Those changes resulted in a regime that is less prescriptive in 
nature but places the emphasis on individual local authorities to enforce the 
high standards of conduct expected of members. 

7

Agenda Item 4



4.2 As part of the approach to enforcement, it is important the protocol for 
Investigation of Complaints regarding breaches of the Member Code of 
Conduct is reviewed regularly.  This is to ensure that the protocol is in line 
with the legislative requirements and works well for both the Council, 
members and, most importantly, the public. 

4.3 The revised protocol at Appendix A, if approved, will allow officers to update 
the Council’s current website links with standard forms and easy access to 
the members Code of Conduct.  This will ensure that any complaints 
received regarding alleged breaches of the Code of Conduct are in fact 
breaches of that Code and not, for example, complaints about Council 
services that ought to be directed elsewhere.  

4.4 The revised form for making such complaints is attached at Appendix B for 
information.  This updated form will be a part of ensuring that members of 
the public are given as much assistance as is appropriate to ensure 
complaints are both made in the right way and directed to the right person. 

5.0 OPTIONS

5.1 Members can either:

5.2 Option 1: approve the proposed revised Protocol for Investigation of 
Complaints regarding breaches of the Member Code of Conduct; 

5.3 Option 2: approve the revised Protocol subject to further changes; or 

5.4 Option 3: decide not to approve the revised Protocol at all. 

6.0 CONCLUSION

6.1 Standards Committee has responsibility for considering the appropriate 
arrangements to be followed in the initial consideration, investigation or 
hearing of any complaint and should ensure that those arrangements are 
reviewed regularly.  

6.2 The complaints received by the Monitoring Officer are often dealt with at the 
initial consideration stage and the proposed revisions to the Protocol should 
improve the efficiency and effectiveness of this process.  

Iolanda Puzio
Monitoring Officer
22 February 2017

Please ensure that every part of this section where there is an asterisk*  is completed in 
accordance with the instructions before sending the report to Member Services, following 
which please delete this sentence.

8



APPENDICES

Appendix 1 – Proposed Protocol for Investigation of Complaints regarding 
breaches of the Member Code of Conduct

Appendix 2 – Complaint Form 
Appendix 3 - Current Investigation Protocol

IMPLICATIONS

Staffing: N/A
Financial: N/A
Property: N/A
Electoral Division(s): All

*  Please remove whichever option is not applicable

Executive Decision No*

Key Decision No*

If a Key Decision, is the proposal published in the current Forward Plan? N/A*

Is the decision exempt from call-in on grounds of urgency? No*

* N/A*If exempt from call-in, has the agreement of the Chair of the relevant 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee been sought or obtained?

No*Has this matter been considered by Overview and Scrutiny?
If so, give details below.

N.B. If an executive decision is made, then a decision cannot be implemented until the 
expiry of the eighth working day after the date of the meeting – unless the decision is 
urgent and exempt from call-in and the Head of Member Services and Scrutiny has 
obtained the necessary approvals.

PREVIOUS RELEVANT COUNCIL OR EXECUTIVE DECISIONS
[including Local Committees]

Council on 21 June 2012

CONSIDERATION BY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY

Not considered by Overview and Scrutiny.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

No background papers

Contact: Iolanda Puzio, Cumbria House, Carlisle.

9



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1

PROTOCOL FOR INVESTIGATION OF COMPLAINTS 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE

Introduction

This is the procedure that will be followed by the Monitoring Officer on receipt of a 
complaint that a member has breached the Member’s Code of Conduct.  

The role of the Monitoring Officer in dealing with complaints about members is to 
review every complaint received and take a decision as to whether it merits formal 
investigation.  Where it appears that formal investigation may be appropriate, the 
Monitoring Officer will refer the complaint to the Standards Committee.  

In order to reach a decision as to whether a complaint should be referred to the 
Standards Committee, the Monitoring Officer will ordinarily follow the process set out 
below.  However, in certain cases the Monitoring Officer may decide that the  
complaint should be immediately referred to the Standards Committee where he/she 
feels that it would be inappropriate for him/her to take a decision on it, for example 
where he/she has formally advised the member on the matter previously or the 
complaint is particularly sensitive.

Whilst the process  does not require the involvement of an Independent Person, as 
set out in the in the Localism Act 2011, until a formal investigation is commenced, 
the Monitoring Officer will consult with the Independent Person at any point that 
he/she considers it may be appropriate or beneficial to the process.

The Monitoring Officer may vary this procedure, including any timescales referred to, 
when he/she considers it desirable in the interests of justice or fairness or the 
effective conduct of the matter to do so.

Complaints will be dealt with confidentially in the first instance to ascertain

1 If there is any substance to the complaint
2 To ensure fairness to all concerned
3 To ensure that no pre-judgements are made
4 To ensure that any complaints are not vexatious

Process

Stage One 

1. All complaints must be on a properly completed complaints form or the 
complaint will be rejected.  The Monitoring Officer will ensure that 
reasonable arrangements are in place to assist any prospective 
complainant to submit a complaint in the correct format.  

11



2. A complainant must provide their full name and address to the Monitoring 
Officer when making their complaint, however, they may request that their 
identity and/or other personal details are not disclosed further during this 
process.  A complainant’s details will only be withheld from others involved 
in this process where there are cogent and relevant reasons not to divulge 
this information.  The decision whether or not to grant anonymity to the 
complainant will be made by the Monitoring Officer and be at his/her 
absolute discretion.  Should the Monitoring Officer be minded to refuse a 
request from a complainant for anonymity, he/she will inform the 
complainant before progressing their complaint any further.

3. The Monitoring Officer will review the properly completed complaints form 
and decide whether it merits initial enquiry.  The Monitoring Officer will at 
this stage reject complaints that are found to be, in the Monitoring Officer’s 
absolute discretion, insubstantial, vexatious, unrelated to a breach of the 
Code of Conduct or being/have been investigated elsewhere.  

4. If the complaint is rejected at this stage, the Monitoring Officer will inform 
the complainant of their decision and the reasons for it.

Stage Two

5. The Monitoring Officer will commence a process of enquiry in order to 
gather the information necessary to make a decision as whether there is 
substance to the complaint and if there is, whether an informal resolution 
can be reached or whether the complaint should be referred to the 
Standards Committee for formal investigation. 

6. The Monitoring Officer may undertake the enquiries him/herself or may ask 
another appropriate Council Officer to undertake the enquiries on their 
behalf.  If another Council Officer is to undertake the enquiries they will 
follow the process set out at Stage Three below in place of the Monitoring 
Officer

7. The Monitoring Officer may defer making further enquiries in respect of the 
complaint if it is appropriate in the circumstances to do so, for example 
because it might prejudice an ongoing criminal investigation.  If a 
complaint is deferred at this stage, the Monitoring Officer will inform the 
complainant of their decision and the reasons for it. 

12



Stage Three  

8. If the Monitoring Officer considers that further information or clarification is 
required from the complainant, the Monitoring Officer will arrange to 
discuss the complaint with the complainant.

9. The Monitoring Officer will send the complaint to the relevant member and 
ask for the member’s comments.  The member should provide those 
comments within 14 days of the complaint being referred to them.    

10.The Monitoring Officer will provide the relevant group leader with a copy of 
the complaint at the same time as this is sent to the relevant member.1 A 
consultation will take place with the group leader within 21 days of the 
complaint being referred to consider possible resolutions.  

Stage Four  

11. If, in the opinion of the Monitoring Officer, a resolution or proposed 
resolution is agreed with the group leader, the complaint will be closed and 
the Monitoring Officer will within 14 days of the conclusion of Stage 3, 
provide a written record of his/her decision in respect of the complaint to 
the complainant, relevant member and Group Leader

12. If the Monitoring Officer is not satisfied with the response of the Group Leader, 
he/she will speak to the independent person within 14 days of the conclusion of 
Stage Three.  At that discussion there will be one of two decisions made:

1 to investigate the matter further
2 to take no further action

13. If following that discussion, the decision is that the matter should be referred to 
the Standards Committee, as sub-committee of three members (one from each 
main political group) will be convened and that sub-committee decide whether to 
instigate an investigation.

14. The Monitoring Officer will appoint an investigating officer and draft the terms for 
the investigation.  The aim will be for any investigation to be completed within 
three months with up dates being provided to the Monitoring Officer on a monthly 
basis.

15. If the investigation recommends further action the full Standards Committee will 
meet to decide any penalty within four weeks.

16. The meeting will be in private.

1 In cases where the complaint relates to an independent member, it will be discussed with the Chief Executive  
and references throughout this protocol to Group Leader(s) should be taken to include the Chief Executive 
where appropriate.

13



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2

Cumbria County Council
Complaints Form

This form is to be completed if you wish to make a complaint about a 
Councillor’s behaviour.  

This complaints form is only to be completed if you feel a County Councillor or voting 
co-opted member (“Members”) has breached the Members’ Code of Conduct.  If you 
have another complaint, for example regarding a decision of the Cumbria County 
Council, that complaint should be made under the appropriate Complaints Scheme 
[insert web address].  

Please send completed forms to: 

Monitoring.Officer@cumbria.gov.uk
The Monitoring Officer
Cumbria County Council
Cumbria House
Botchergate
Carlisle
Cumbria
CA1 1RD

Your details:

1. Please provide us with your name and contact details:

Title:

First name:

Last name:

Address:

Daytime telephone:

Evening telephone:

Mobile telephone:

Email address:

15

mailto:Monitoring.Officer@cumbria.gov.uk


In the interests of fairness and natural justice, the Authority should inform the 
Member(s) who are the subject matter of a complaint as to who has made the 
complaint.  

On very rare occasions, it may be appropriate to maintain the anonymity of a 
complainant.  The decision whether or not to grant anonymity to the complainant 
will be made by the Monitoring Officer and be at his/her absolute discretion.

If you wish to have your details kept anonymous, please check the box below and 
provide the reasons you feel your anonymity should be maintained.  

An example of a reason that the Monitoring Officer might agree to anonymity is:

 Where the complainant has reasonable grounds for believing that they will 
be at risk of physical harm if their identity is disclosed.

2. Would you like your details to be kept confidential?
☐

3. Please tell us which complainant type best describes you:
☐Member of the public
☐An elected or co-opted member of an authority 
☐An independent member of the standards committee
☐Member of Parliament
☐Local authority monitoring officer
☐Other council officer or authority employee
☐Other ____________________________

Please explain your reasons why you would like your details to be kept confidential. 
Continue on a separate sheet if necessary.

16



COMPLAINEE DETAILS:

4. Please provide us with the details of the Members(s) you believe have 
breached the Code of Conduct:

Title Forename Surname

5. Please identify which specific paragraph(s) of the Code of Conduct you 
believe has been breached:

17



COMPLAINT DETAILS

6. Please provide us with details of what the Member(s) has done that you 
believe breaches the Code of Conduct.

It is important to provide as much information as you can about the alleged 
conduct as this will help the Monitoring Officer decide whether or not to take 
any action on your complaint. For example:

 You should provide the date(s), time(s) and location of the alleged incident 
wherever possible.

 You should be specific about what the Member(s) has said or done that 
you believe is a breach of the Code of Conduct.

 If there were any witnesses to the alleged incident you should provide their 
names and details if possible.

 You should provide any background information that you feel is relevant.
 If there is any evidence of the conduct (e.g. correspondence) you should 

attach this to the complaint form. However please do not send original 
documents as the Monitoring Officer cannot guarantee the safe keeping of 
these documents.

If you are complaining about more than one Member, please be specific as to 
what each Member has done that you believe breaches the Code of Conduct. 
In addition to this, it is important that you avoid providing the Monitoring 
Officer with large amounts of background information as this will make it more 
difficult for the complaint to be assessed accurately.  

You should continue on a separate sheet if necessary. 

18



APPENDIX 3

AH/Reports/County Council/Investigation Protocol 210612

INVESTIGATION PROTOCOL

STANDARDS COMMITTEE

Introduction

The aim of dealing with complaints against councillors about allegations of a 
breach of the Code of Conduct is to deal with these complaints efficiently, as 
quickly as possible and to ensure fairness to both the complainant and the 
councillor concerned whilst preserving the principals of natural justice.

Complaints will be dealt with confidentially in the first instance to ascertain

1 If there is any substance to the complaint
2 To ensure fairness to all concerned
3 To ensure that no pre-judgements are made
4 To ensure that any complaints are not vexatious

Process

1 Complaint received by Monitoring Officer.  All complaints must be on 
completed complaints form.

2 Monitoring Officer to inform member subject to the complaint and 
identify the complainant.  This procedure to be followed unless there 
are cogent and relevant reasons not to divulge this information in the 
opinion of the Monitoring Officer.

3 Complaint to be discussed with relevant Group Leader and a way 
forward agreed.

4 Discussion to be held within one week of receipt of complaint.

5 Group Leader to respond to the Monitoring Officer within four weeks of 
the complaint being discussed with the Group Leader.  

6 If the Monitoring Officer is satisfied with the resolution or proposed 
resolution in the Monitoring Officer’s absolute discretion the matter is 
closed.

7 If the Monitoring Officer is not satisfied with the response of the Group 
Leader, then the Monitoring Officer will speak to the independent 
person within two weeks of the Group Leader’s response.

8 At the discussion there will be one of two decisions made

1 to investigate the matter further
2 to take no further action

19



APPENDIX 3

AH/Reports/County Council/Investigation Protocol 210612

9 A sub-committee of three members (one from each main political 
group) will decide whether to instigate an investigation.

10 The Monitoring Officer will appoint an investigating officer and draft the 
terms for the investigation.  The aim will be for any investigation to be 
completed within three months with up dates being provided to the 
Monitoring Officer on a monthly basis.

11 If the investigation recommends further action the full Standards 
Committee will meet to decide any penalty within four weeks.

12 The meeting will be in private.

20


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Review of the protocol for investigation of complaints regarding breaches of the Members Code of Conduct
	Appendix 1 Investigation Protocol (Final Version)
	Appendix 2 Complaints Form (Final Version)
	Appendix 3 Investigation Protocol 210612


